Board of Education Meeting

District Administrative Office Thursday, January 16, 2020 6:30pm - 8:30pm

Present: Mrs. Angie Hamberg, Superintendent; Mr. Mark Cooper, Assistant Superintendent; Mr. Brad Schneider, President; Mr. Jeremy Buskirk, Treasurer; Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member; Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President; Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative; Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member; Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member

1 Mission

Mr. Brad Schneider

The mission of the Big Walnut Local Schools is to inspire and guide each student to his or her maximum potential.

Minutes:

• The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm.

Vision

Mr. Brad Schneider

In order to realize our mission, we will strive to achieve and maintain our vision of: Student-focused, professional, collaborative staff Student-focused, challenging and current curriculum Supportive, involved and informed community Safe, respectful and welcoming environment

3 President

Mr. Brad Schneider

Call to Order Pledge of Allegiance

4 District Goals

Improve academic achievement Improve communication Plan for growth (facility plan) Financial responsibility

5 20-016 Minutes

Mr. Brad Schneider

It is recommended the Board approve the minutes for the December 12, 2019, regular meeting.

Motioned: Mrs. Liana Lee Seconded: Mrs. Sherri Dorsch

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|--|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | | |
| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | Х | | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | X | | |

6 Superintendent's Report

Mrs. Angie Hamberg

6.1 District Goal: Improve Communication

Levy Renewal on March 17, 2020

Minutes:

• Mrs. Hamburg shared information on the Levy renewal is on our website and an article will be in the Eagle Examiner. She shared a letter from the Delaware Chamber thanking Big Walnut Intermediate for the donation.

6.2 District Goals: Student Academic Achievement

- BWE Building Presentation Mrs. Annie Clark
- BWE CIP Update Mrs. Annie Clark
- Academic Update Mrs. Jen Young

Minutes:

- Mrs. Clark shared her building goals:
 - By the end of the 2019-20 school year, maintain or increase the number of students that are successful with their reading abilities with only Tier 1 instructional support.
 - By the end of the 2019-20 school year, all grade-level teams will meet at least once per month (8 total times) to look specifically at PM data in order to guide Tier 1 instruction.
- Mrs. Clark shared about their Kids Inspiring Kindness Campaign:
 - A group of Big Walnut Elementary 4th grade students shared about their Card Company. This was an initiative to help students learn about real-world economics and raise money for a local charity. The students shared about their roles in the Card Company and what they learned through the process.
- Mrs. Young shared as part of her academic update about third-grade testing and how it related to third-grade guarantee. She also noted that the full-day kindergarten and preschool registration will be coming up in February.

6.3 District Goal: Planning for Growth

- Consolidated Cooperative Fiberoptic Connection Update- Mr. Doug Swartz
- Construction Update Mr. Doug Swartz
- Site Athletics Discussion

Minutes:

- Mr. Swartz and Mr. Baumann shared an update on the finances of the project as a whole.
- The Board discussed with members of VSWC and Gilbane various cost savings options.

7 Recognitions

Mr. Brad Schneider

- Emily Gavaghan, Hylen Souders, Student of the Month Mr. Brad Schneider
- Grace Hall, Big Walnut Elementary, Student of the Month & Art Student of the Month Mrs. Liana Lee
- Amelia Spencer-Stump, Hylen Souders, Art Student of the Month Mr. Doug Crowl
- OSBA School Board Recognition Mrs. Angie Hamberg

8 Treasurer's Report

Mr. Jeremy Buskirk

8.1 District Goal: Financial Responsibility

Monthly Financial Statement

9 Selected Board Policy

Mr. Brad Schneider

10 Board Members Items of Interest

Mr. Brad Schneider

Minutes:

Mr. Crowl noted that the Eagle Examiner had a full page about the Levy and that it basically states that the District is on a cliff in that we would need to make cuts before November 2020 if it did not pass in March. He expressed that this was a different understanding than when it was discussed a year ago. He was under the impression that cuts would not need to be made unless it failed in November of 2020. He reiterated that he had suggested putting the levy on in November of 2019 so if it failed we would not be on the cliff. Mr. Crowl also shared his perspective on the situation when the levy was passed in 2010 and how it took three levy votes.

There was discussion on how the levy collection worked regarding when they are approved and when the taxes are collected.

Mrs. Hamberg shared she recalled that there was the suggested to put the levy on in November, but the Board discussed it and decided not to because of the perception community would have that we had said it was a five-year levy and we were coming back to them in four years.

He was under the impression that cuts would not need to be made unless it failed in November of 2020 and

Mrs. Hamberg said we would be able to start the next school year without cuts because we cannot start a new school year and not be able to pay people.

Mr. Crowl said he understood this and expressed that he thinks we should have discussed a cut list prior to Election Day so people know what is at stake.

Mr. Schneider shared a perspective that we could have had conversations about cuts last November, now, or after March and there are people in the community that will see this as we are threatening or trying to scare them with cuts. He said he is not sure if there is a solution that makes people not feel threatened but still provides the real impact if it doesn't pass.

Mrs. Hamberg stated that cuts have to be made prior to the 2020/2021 school year - that is why a levy is needed. In addition, our staff knows that if there is a levy that fails cuts will be made to balance the budget. She shared that a lot of work and thought goes into cut lists and said that if that was the wish of the Board we could do that. She was concerned about scaring the newer teachers by stating positions? She is hopeful since this is a renewal it will pass.

Mrs. Hamberg, Mr. Schneider, and Mrs. Lee shared with him that the Board discussed and voted to wait until May as not to be during the current levy cycle

Mr. Fujii shared that he has gotten calls regarding what cuts would mean and while he has been in meetings he has heard not heard what the cuts would look like, but he does not have the historical perspective of what cuts would be.

Mr. Schneider said that there may not have been many detailed discussions by the board regarding cuts, but he believes that implied in the fact that we are asking is that we need or feel we need it and if it didn't pass we would need to roll back what we offer. He also encouraged everyone to consider the things that have changed since deciding to put the levy on in March and had we discussed and presented a cut list prior to November it would have looked different. Due to great work by the district, we saved money on insurance. We may have reported more cuts than would have been needed. He shared that he can appreciate the concern about cuts, but any levy discussion there is a layer of cut that exists there one way or the other. If we are asking for a levy that losing would require no cut, you have to stop and think about that process. As a board, we are thinking about these types of things all the time. So, I can understand that someone from the public may not be thinking about them until they read it in the Eagle Examiner. It is a struggle to help everyone understand all the many moving pieces and changing variables. If we could find a way to consistently help people see what the risk of not having the levy in a way that people don't feel like they are being threatened or scared in supporting, he would be all for it, but he shared he was not sure what that way is.

Mr. Crowl, also, noted that it is stated the levy is 12% of our budget and shared the increase in the forecasted expenditures noted for next year and questioned whether they should go up as much as it shows.

Mrs. Hamberg shared that we didn't add any new teachers this year because we don't have the money and class sizes are going up. She noted that at some point we need to be able to add teachers as we continue to grow. Mrs. Hamberg shared that she, Mr. Buskirk and Mr. Cooper are compiling a ten-year analysis and look forward to reviewing it with the board during the work session in February. She noted that it is hard to discuss all of the numbers when we aren't able to have them in front of us.

Mr. Crowl noted what the district went through in 2009 and said he was concerned with voters walking into a ballet with an or else situation.

It was noted by Mrs. Hamberg that unfortunately, this is the reality of a levy because these are dollars that pay for our current staff.

Mr. Crowl asked whether our current levy effectively lasted four years for collections but it was a five-year levy.

Mr. Schneider indicated that it actually felt it has lasted ten years due to us coming up on our second renewal of a five-year cycle, and in that time, our enrollment has increased over 30%. He cannot think of another district or even a company that has absorbed the growth that we have and not asked for more money. He noted that in this time other districts around us have had to ask for new money.

Mrs. Hamberg shared that she was concerned that putting out a specific cut list now could cause panic and

scare our newer staff that don't have seniority, but if the levy didn't pass, we know we would have to start talking about that. She noted that this would not be her recommendation, but the administration would be willing to do this if the board wished.

Mr. Fujii asked if this is what we would be looking at in February.

Mrs. Hamberg shared that at this time the focus of our February work session is looking at planning our long-range finances. We want to look at where we have been, where we are, and where we are heading. We plan to bring in a consultant to help us look at this and provide some recommendations. Mrs. Hamberg shared the district's growth challenges and shared that we are not getting much additional help from the state. We looked at a long-range plan last year, and we want to make sure that our new board members are up to speed. We want to dive into what we are seeing and what we are projecting so we can decide what we want to do about it. She explained that we have two ways to look at it. We reduce services and expenses or you increase revenue. We want to be thinking about our long-range plan.

Mr. Schneider shared that based on what we have looked at before; it should be pretty understandable what the impact is even if the focus isn't on if it doesn't pass.

Mr. Fujii shared that he thought this information would be helpful as we interact with these issues. He noted that he didn't recall talking about this issue but realized that there is a lot to get up to speed on.

Mrs. Hamberg shared that communicating to the public this information was not meant to be the specifics but helping people understand this is a significant amount of our money and if we do not have this money to pay people then we have to take action.

Mr. Crowl clarified then that there would have to be severe cuts. He shared that if the board had an option to reduce the severity of the cuts it should do so. He noted that we don't know the outcome in March, and if there is an avenue to take where cuts in July and August are not as severe, we should take that avenue.

Mr. Schneider asked if what he was saying was the assumption that if there was an asked last November it would have done this?

Mr. Crowl said he felt there was an action that could be taken and moved that commencing on February 1, 2020, and continuing until June 2021 that the district implement a one-year fiscal year spending freeze at the 2020 spending levels (so the services remained the same for the kids) and a moratorium on hiring and employee replacement without prior Board approval. Mr. Crowl shared how he felt the numbers would break down if we went with the freeze with a 3% increase along with a 3% increase for the cost of inflation. He shared that he felt this approach would allow us to save from next year's projected amount that we may not have if the levy didn't pass. He reiterated that it would be this year's spending limits plus whatever we needed to cover contractual obligations and an increase in the cost of living.

Mrs. Hamberg noted our salaries are our major increase and are not being suggested to freeze since they are contractually bound and costs like utilities are not completely within our control. She suggested that it seemed that the situation was being oversimplified.

Mr. Schneider then asked that Mr. Crowl repeat the motion. After this, he asked if there was a second.

Mr. Fujii questioned if a second had to be made in order for a discussion. He is prepared for the second in February.

Mr. Schneider stated he is pretty much where Mr. Fujii but there was a lot to it. He was not willing to make a second at this time.

Mr. Crowl stated that he felt it was a pretty simple motion. It is a spending freeze to 2020 levels and a moratorium on new hires and replacement hires and both are conditioned with the qualification of prior to board approval.

Mr. Schneider expressed that the budget process has essentially already taken place and been approved for the current fiscal year. He shared that there shouldn't be any major changes for hires, and it seemed like what Mr. Crowl is talking about is really more relevant to July 1 and further.

Mrs. Hamberg agreed that we would only be replacing positions for the remainder of the year. The only reason a hire would be made is if a special needs student would move into the district that requires a one-on-one aide. In this case, we may need to hire this person prior to the board meeting so we are not out of compliance with federal law for meeting the student's needs.

Mr. Cooper shared more from the HR side of hiring and stated that this is the track record that has been set. Both he and Mrs. Hamberg expressed we have always brought hires before the board for approval and are not just randomly make hires.

Mr. Schneider restated that he is not against the discussion or the thought process but would rather not vote for something like this tonight trying to guess at the impact and not being able to analyze it first.

There was no second.

Mr. Crowl questioned if it was common practice for our district to let any employee of the district interview another employee or student about any non-threatening social media posts on non-school platforms.

Mr. Cooper responded in his role as the HR director that if there is a violation of a staff member's First Amendment Rights there is a conversation that is had from an HR perspective.

Mr. Crowl asked how many times a year and why.

Mr. Cooper indicated it occurs a few times a year for staff and a lot more often for students. If a student post is causing disruption to the school having a safe and productive environment, it is addressed. For staff members, there is a limit to First Amendment Rights. If a staff member is talking about a public matter it is one piece that is okay, but they should not be doing it on work time. If a staff member is speaking as an employee about a private matter related to the employee it is a violation of First Amendment Rights.

Mr. Fujii shared he was happy to see that winter-homecoming was well attended and a nice event. He wanted to congratulate the boy's basketball program. He also was thankful for the fog delay - he cautioned all drivers during school hours. He also shared that he will be attending OSBA's new board orientation and was looking forward to learning more as a board member.

Mrs. Dorsch stated that she understands the concerns of people regarding real estate taxes going up and that it can be a budgetary concern. She shared that one thing she tries to keep in mind as a perspective is in the State of Ohio our income taxes have decreased over the last few years. She expressed that she felt we can make sure our dollars are being used better locally with local control. While the levy on the ballot in March is not going to raise taxes, she shared that it is good to be reminded of this and keep this perspective in mind.

Mrs. Lee attended two really good meetings this week a levy speaker meeting that she attended as a community member and Neighborhood Bridge group that is coming together. She shared that she is excited to see where this goes.

Mr. Edwards shared:

- The students had their winter homecoming and it was a nice event.
- The students are discussing a solution to homecoming decoration problems that they had in the fall.
- The School Play (Complete History of America: Abridged) is in 2 weeks
- Musical (Urinetown) auditions tomorrow and next week
- Bryan Mengel (senior) bowled a game of 244
- Boys Basketball has a positive record (7-5)
- Girls basketball, also, has a positive record at 10-2
- We are getting a new football coach
- Spring sports start at the end of February

- Scheduling for classes begins soon and there are going to be some new offerings. For example, there are some new English offerings. Also, Mr. Robinson is making a financial literacy curriculum.
- 8th-grade orientation is coming up soon
- The last parent-teacher conferences are on February 6th
- · Ski Club has started up
- There are two new clubs that have started recently: Coloring Club and the Feminist Club

11 Public Participation

Mr. Brad Schneider

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District's business and is not considered a public community meeting. This is a time for public participation during the meeting as indicated in the agenda. (Please reference criteria for Public Participation, which is attached to the agenda.)

Minutes:

- Ms. Sarah Dominguez from Sunbury, OH asked if the levy in March passed if there is still going to be a need for additional money with the growth we are experiencing.
 - Mr. Schneider indicated the Board will be diving deeper into the forecast at the work session, but he could not envision a scenario where we would not need to ask for new money in the next few years. When and how much is still up for debate.

12 Business Items

12.1 20-017

It is recommended the Board approve the district calendar for the 2020/2021 school year.

Motioned: Mrs. Liana Lee Seconded: Mr. Steve Fujii

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|--|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | | |
| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | X | | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | X | | |

Attachments:

BWLS 20.21 BOE Approval.pdf

12.2 20-018

Mr. Jeremy Buskirk

It is recommended the Board approve the resolution between Big Walnut Local Schools and Meta Solutions regarding cooperative advertising and receiving bids for school bus chassis and bodies.

Minutes:

• Mr. Fujii motions that the Resolution does not move forward until after the February 20, 2020 Board meeting, pending Mr. Crowl's early motion on budget freezes.

Motioned: Mrs. Liana Lee Seconded: Mr. Steve Fujii

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|--|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | Х | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | Х | | |
| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | X | | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | Х | | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | Х | | |

12.3 20-019

Mr. Brad Schneider

It is recommended the Board accept the following donations:

- \$110 donated to BWMS, Jeans Day donations BWMS Student Council Fund # 200-9612
- \$250 donated to BWHS Drama, anonymous doner BWHS Drama Fund # 200-9130
- \$100 donated to Food Service, anonymous doner BWLSD Cafe Caring Fund #006-0000
- \$200 donated to BWHS Drama, donated by Mariana Gersper BWHS Drama Club Fund #200-9130
- \$500 donated to BWHS, donated by Sunbury Lions Club BWHS Eagle Strong Fund # 300-9001
- \$250 donated to BWHS, donated by AP College Board BWHS Principal Fund # 018-9001
- \$4,011 donated to BWLSD, donated by HR Imaging District Support Fund # 018-9000
- \$110 donated to BWMS, anonymous donor BWMS Principal Fund #018-9002
- \$100 donated to BWMS, anonymous donor BWMS Principal Fund #018-9002

Motioned: Mrs. Sherri Dorsch Seconded: Mrs. Liana Lee

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|--------------------------------|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | | |

| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | X | |
|--|---|--|
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | Х | |

13 Human Resources

Mr. Mark Cooper

• Human Resources Update

Minutes:

• Mr. Shelton was asked to come up and share about the head football.

13.1 20-020

It is recommended the Board approve a balance of the year contract for the remainder of the 2019/2020 school year at the successful completion of the 90-day probationary contract for the following classified staff:

Braun, Megan

Bridges, Sara

Funston, Megan

Green, Kathleen

Hunt, Samantha

Jaeger, Becky

Kelly, Nicole

Quinn, Rhonda

Shaffer, Christopher

Sherbourne, Michelle

Snow, Staci

Minutes:

• Mr. Fujii motioned, Mrs. Lee seconded, for consent agenda on items 13.1 through 13.6.

Motioned: Mr. Steve Fujii Seconded: Mrs. Liana Lee

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|-------------------------------|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |

| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | |
|--|---|--|
| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | X | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | X | |

13.2

It is recommended the Board approve, upon verification of previous experience and receipt of clear background checks and all other required documentation, a one-year certified contract beginning the 2020/2021 school year for Robert Page, position to be determined, salary MA step 13.

Minutes:

Consent in item 20-020 motion 13.1

13.3

It is recommended the Board amend the leave request return date for Stacy Chalfant, Teaching Assistant, SOU from November 15, 2019 to November 4, 2019 (item 14.1 motion 19-033).

Minutes:

Consent in item 20-020 motion 13.1

13.4 .

It is recommended the Board approve the resignation of Steve Johnston as Mechanic, effective January 7, 2020, and to begin employment as Head Mechanic, effective January 8, 2020, step and contract remain in effect.

Minutes:

• Consent in item 20-020 motion 13.1

13.5

It is recommended the Board approve the following resignations:

• Kellie Brooks, BWHS food service worker, effective January 8, 2020

Minutes:

• Consent in item 20-020 motion 13.1

13.6 .

It is recommended the Board approve the following supplemental contracts: for the remainder of the 2019/2020 school year:

- Mandy Cosgriff, .5 BWHS head gymnastics coach, group 3, step 0, effective the remainder of the 2019/2020 school year
- Jordan Betz, .5 SOU PAC, group 7, step 0effective the remainder of the 2019/2020 school year

• Robert Page, head football coach, group 1, step 11, effective the beginning of the 2020/2021 school year

Minutes:

Consent in item 20-020 motion 13.1

14 Scheduling of Next Board Meeting

Mr. Brad Schneider

Regularly Scheduled Meeting:

February 13, 2020

7:30 AM

District Administrative Office

Special Work Session Meeting:

February 20, 2020

8:00 AM

District Administrative Office

Regularly Scheduled Meeting:

February 20, 2020

6:30 AM

District Administrative Office

15 Executive Session

Mr. Brad Schneider

15.1 20-021

It is recommended the Board enter Executive Session to consider the employment of a public employee or official and to negotiate with other political subdivisions respecting requests for economic development assistance

Minutes:

- The Board entered Executive Session at 10:07 pm.
- The Board exited Executive Session at 10:10 pm.

Motioned: Mr. Steve Fujii

Seconded: Mrs. Liana Lee

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|--|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | Х | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | | |
| Mr. Camden Edwards, Student Board Representative | X | | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | Х | | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | Х | | |

15.2 20-022

Mrs. Lee motioned, Mrs. Dorsch seconded to add from the floor to enter Executive Session to confer with an attorney for the Board of Education concerning disputes involving the Board that are pending or imminent court action.

Motioned: Mrs. Liana Lee Seconded: Mrs. Sherri Dorsch

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|----------------------------------|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |
| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | | |
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | X | | |

16 20-023 Adjourn

Mr. Brad Schneider

It is recommended the Board exit Executive Session and the meeting adjourns.

Minutes:

• The Board exited Executive Session and adjourned at 10:38 pm.

Motioned: Mr. Steve Fujii Seconded: Mrs. Liana Lee

| Voter | Yes | No | Abstaining |
|-------------------------------|-----|----|------------|
| Mr. Brad Schneider, President | X | | |
| Mr. Doug Crowl, Board Member | X | | |

| Mrs. Liana Lee, Vice President | X | |
|----------------------------------|---|--|
| Mrs. Sherri Dorsch, Board Member | X | |
| Mr. Steve Fujii, Board Member | Χ | |